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Stummuary

Loy 7097 dhe Oviord drchacologieal Unie tOAUT undertook a watehing brief ar St
Marv's Clueeh Ashendon. Buckinghaimsiure tNGROSP 70300 1423), during the
installaiion o new drainagee facitivies arengid e exiorior hase of the chureh. No
archacological Jeaiures were seen: o destruciion deposit resuliing from the
demaolinon of ithe previous Tictorian hrick-huilt drainage gudlh around the hase of the
tenser was exaniined jor finds, witl one picce of post-medieval brick being retained,

I Tatroduaction (Fig. 1)

Work at st Nvary's Chureh, Ashendon, Buckinghamshire was moniored by the OAU
during 1997 The church was being renovated with the aid of a grant from English
Herttager the west tower has been re-pointed and the parapet on top of the tower has
heen rebuill. New drainage was required for the building owing to the ineffective
nature of o Victorian brick-built gullyv, which surrounded much of the structure.

The work moniwred to date mvolved the removal ol the brick gully followed by the
instaliation of new drainage pipes. including a new svstem of french drains around the
base of the west ower, All trench excavation was monitored for the presence of
features and tinds. All groundwork was undertaken by contractors Bowden and Ward,
working 1o plans devised by architect Peter Gilbert Scott. RIBA AAdipl. This
watching briel report is an interim document pending resumption and completion of

the works.
2 Background

The village of Ashendon s located in the centre-west of Buckinghamshire, in the Vale
of Avlesburv. Ashendon Hundred is mentioned in the 1086 Domesday Survey,
although there 1s very litde known history of the vitlage itsell.

St Marv's Church dates 1o the Norman period and 1s situated on high ground within
the village. with views south-east towards the Vale (see Fig. 1) Norman masonry 1s
visible in the fubric of the north side of the buiiding. where there is alse a blocked
Norman doorway, The Norman nave and the south side of the butlding were
lengthened in ¢ AD 1200, Evidence for a north transept is visible in the north wail of
the building: the chancel dates to the early 19%-century (Pevsner 1960, 32).

3 Aims

The aims of the watching bricl were to wdentify any archacological remains exposed
on site during the course of the works, and o record these to cstablished OAU
standards (Wilkinson [992)0 in order to secure therr preservation by record.

4 Methodology

The watching brief was undertaken by means of separate inspection visits. All
excavation was by hand. and was undertaken by the main contractor.

()
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Withm the constraints imposed by health and safety considerations the deposits
exposced were cleaned. mspected and recorded in plan. section and by colour slide and
monochrome print photography, Written records were also made on proforma sheets.
Sott deseripuon aulises stundard charts for the approximaton of percentage of
melusion tvpes msotl deposits.

5 Resules (Fes 2 & 3)
The West Tower,

The remuming porton ot the Victorian brnck dram was removed by the contraciors
> hase of the west tower foolings. At the base ol the resulting trench

from arowd th
modern metal objects, broken and whole bricks and modern glass. The deposit was up
to 0.3 mthick and overlay the offser footing beneath the north and south walls of the
tower, The offser comprised roughly hewn hmestone blocks bonded with grey mortar,
and the stonework projected 0,12 m away from the wall faces. Above the offset was
the wall o the tower (101). constructed ol large blocks of limestone, which included
two buttresses at cach corner. A course of chamfered ashlars was incorporated into the
wall, this being 0.4 m above present ground fevel. Two buttresses had been built
against the north wall of the church: the date of these additions is unknown. Topsoil
(1030 overfay laver T04=103 and abuotted the wall and buttresses.

6 Finds

One brick wuas retamed as a representative sample of those which comprised the
Victoran dram: it will be retained pending further work at the church.

7 Eavironmental results

Due 1o the absence of any significant archaeclogical deposits. no environmental soil

samples were taken,

8  Discussion

At this stage the watching briel has not identified archacology of any significance
bevond the Vietorian drain already known o be /i sine any conclusions must remain
pending until completion of the works.
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